

**LADA OWNERS CLUB of GREAT BRITAIN  
CLUB RULES**

1. **NAME.**  
The name of the club is LADA OWNERS CLUB OF GREAT BRITAIN.
2. **OBJECTS.**  
The objects of the club are to provide recreational and social facilities to Club Members.
3. **MEMBERSHIP.**  
Lada Owner and spouse ~ Full Members
4. **SUBSCRIPTIONS.**  
Subscriptions are £\*\* per annum. The subscription rate will be reviewed at the Annual General Meeting.
5. **MANAGEMENT.**
  - a) The management of the Club shall be entrusted to a General Committee consisting of Chairman, Secretary and Treasurer, and, in addition, four elected Committee Members.
  - b) The General Committee shall meet once a month and FOUR Committee Members shall be a Quorum.
  - c) The General Committee shall approve all major expenditure.
  - d) Any expenditure by the Club must be paid by the Club Treasurer and deducted from the budget.
  - e) Should the Treasurer feel unable to approve the amount and / or reason for the expenditure, it must then be put to the next full Committee for approval.
  - f) The Annual General Meeting shall each year appoint Officers consisting of Chairman, Secretary, and Treasurer and Four other members.
  - g) On the matters of a disciplinary nature, the Committee will be convened to resolve the matter and its findings will be accepted as final.
  - h) The General Committee shall have the power to co-opt certain Members holding specific jobs within the Club.
6. **MEETINGS**  
An Annual General Meeting of the Club will be held in the month of September each year and fifteen months shall not elapse without a General Meeting. At the Annual General Meeting the following business shall be conducted -
  - a) The Presentation and Passing of the Accounts for the previous year ending on the 31st day of August prior to the Meeting: the accounts first having been audited by the Club's Auditors.
  - b) The election of the Officers and Committee.
  - c) The election of Auditors.
  - d) Such other business as shall have been communicated to the Honorary Secretary and included in the notice of the Meeting given by him / her by members.
7. **ACCOUNTS**  
Full accounts of the financial affairs of the club duly audited by the auditors shall be available for perusal by every member attending The Annual General Meeting.
8. **EXTRAORDINARY MEETINGS**  
An extraordinary General Meeting may be convened within 21 days on requisition of ONE FIFTH of the Members of the Club, for the time being, or TWENTY Members whichever is the less. Such requisition must state the purpose for which such a Meeting is required.
9. **NOTICE OF MEETING**  
The Honorary Secretary shall, at least SEVEN DAYS before the Annual General Meeting, notify all Members of the Meeting stating the time and place where it will be held and the business to be conducted.

10. **LIMITED BUSINESS**  
The business of the Annual General Meeting shall be limited to that provided by these rules and those further matters set out in the Notice convening the Meeting. The quorum at any Annual General Meeting shall be TWELVE Members.
11. **VOTES**  
At all Meetings of the Club each Full Member shall have ONE vote.
12. **PRESIDING**  
The Chairman of the Club shall preside at all Meetings, but if he / she shall not be present within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for the Meeting, or has signified his / her inability to be present, the Members of the Club shall choose on one of their number to take the chair at that Meeting.
13. **EXPELLING OF MEMBERS**  
The General Committee shall have the power to expel any Member who shall offend against the Rules, or, whose conduct shall, in the opinion of the Committee, render him unfit for Membership of the Club. Before any such Member is expelled, the Honorary Secretary shall give him SEVEN DAYS WRITTEN NOTICE to attend a Meeting of the Committee and shall inform him of the complaints against him. No Member shall be expelled without first having an opportunity of appearing before the Committee and answering complaints made against him, nor unless a majority of the Committee vote in favour of his expulsion.
14. **VISITORS**  
Any Member shall be entitled to introduce family and / or guests to the Club, providing that no person whose application for Membership has been declined or who has been expelled from the Club shall be introduced as a guest. Members introducing guests will be responsible for their conduct.
15. **COMPLAINTS**  
All complaints appertaining to Club activities shall be raised in writing to the Honorary Secretary, who shall bring forward all such matters at the First Meeting after the receipt and be dealt with by the Committee whose decision shall be final.
16. **ALTERATION TO RULES**  
No alteration or addition to these rules shall be made except by a resolution carried by a majority of at least TWO THIRDS of the Members present at a General Meeting, notice of which shall have contained particulars of the proposed alteration or addition. The Honorary Secretary shall, as soon as possible, and within 28 days of the making of such alterations or additions to these Rules, give notice of such alteration or addition to the Members, and to whom it may concern, i.e., the Bank.